
 

302 S. 4th Street, Suite 500 | Manhattan, KS 66502 

1300 Massachusetts Ave., Boxborough, MA 01719 

www.civicplus.com 

City of Pryor Creek, OK 
Website Proposal 

Presented by 

Richard L Jones 

Solutions Consultant 



  

November 19th 2019 

 

Brook Rouge 

Media Consultant 

3 N Adair St #2 

Pryor, OK 74361 

 

RE: Website Redesign Services 

 

 

Dear Brook, 

 

Meeting the expectations of citizens is at the core of civic responsibility. Finding that perfect 

blend of functionality and being easy to maintain can be tough. Today’s “what I want, when I 

need it” society is all about digital and timely responses. Saving time, money and increasing 

citizen satisfaction is every government entity’s goal. With the CivicCMS Platform you can 

achieve your vision of success. 

 

CivicPlus, Inc. (CivicPlus) is passionate about our mission to help make local government 

better. We are not just designing a website, we are helping build a trusted and long-term 

relationship between you and your community through our state-of-the-art technology and 

process. Our expertise lies in collaborating with our clients to deliver the right solution, at the 

right cost, housed within a modern design that captures the culture of Pryor. 

 

The following information will show you how the CivicCMS solution will give you the ability 

to make quick updates, reduce your workload, and most importantly, provide your community 

with a powerful online resource that promotes open access to your City. 

 

Please review our proposal closely.  This proposal will save you time and resources while 

providing your visitors a website where they can find what they need, when they need it. We 

look forward to working with you and your staff to help make your vision become a reality.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Richard L Jones 
 

Richard L Jones 

Solutions Consultant 

785.323.4713 

rjones@civicplus.com 

 



 Page 3 

What Sets CivicCMS Apart? 

 

Created to Meet Your Needs 

Developing your new website under the Open Source Initiative provides CivicCMS with the flexibility to 

develop new features and modules to help you meet your goals and vision.  

 

Our Drupal Platform 

CivicPlus will develop your site on one of the industry’s most trusted open source platforms, Drupal. It is 

the platform of choice by national, state, and local governments all over the world.  

 

We Build Long-Term Relationships 

Our partnership with you is only beginning at go-live! We provide ongoing customer support and our 

Account Management team will work with you to help you evolve your web environment throughout your 

relationship with CivicPlus.  

 

Easiest System for Updating & Adding New Content   

Your new CivicCMS website will be specifically designed for ease-of-use so your staff, regardless of their  

technical skill level, can maintain and update your new website easily and efficiently.   

 

Custom & Responsive Design 

Your custom-designed website will be fully responsive on multiple devices including smart phones, tablets 

and wide screen monitors.   

 

Useful & Relevant Modules 

CivicCMS is flexible and scalable to grow with your web environment at your speed and need without  

extra features and functionalities that are not as relevant.  

 

Affordable Cost, Flexible Payments 

We understand the fiscal challenges municipalities face on a daily basis, so CivicPlus offers payment  

options to meet your budgeting needs. 

 

Security and Protection—Priority One! 

Our Tier IV secure hosting facilities are monitored 24/7 and your website is backed up daily off-site.  We 

deploy state-of-the-art hardware and software to prevent DDoS and hacking attacks to protect your 

investment. 



  

List of Clients in Oklahoma 

• Ponca City OK 

• Piedmont OK 

• Pawhuska OK 

• Owasso OK 

• Oklahoma County OK 

• Okmulgee OK 

• Purcell OK 

• Perkins OK 

• Quapaw Tribe OK 

• Skiatook OK 

• Slaughterville OK 

• Tahlequah OK 

• Stilwell OK 

• Stroud OK 

• Tuttle OK 

• Guthrie OK 

• Guymon OK 

• Glenpool OK 

• Goldsby OK 

• Woodward County OK 

• Woodward Convention & Visitors Bureau OK 

• Woodward OK 

• Coweta OK 

• Broken Arrow OK 

• Altus OK 

• Bethany OK 

• Canadian County OK 

• Canadian County Sheriff's Office OK 

• Bixby OK 

• Collinsville OK 

• Chickasha OK 

• Ardmore OK 

• City Management Association of Oklahoma OK 

• Claremore CVB OK 

• Claremore Industrial & Economic Dev Authority (CIEDA) OK 

• Claremore OK 

• Catoosa OK 

• Atoka OK 

• Cleveland County OK 

• Cleveland County Sheriff's Office OK 

• Cleveland OK 

• Jenks OK 

• Kay County OK 

• Lindsay OK 

• Logan County OK 

• McAlester OK 

• Miami OK 

• Midwest City OK 

• Durant OK 

• Diamond Net OK 

• Sallisaw OK 

• Sapulpa OK 

• Sand Springs OK 

• Edmond OK 

• Broken Arrow Convention and Visitors Bureau OK 



 Page 5 

Client Design Examples 

Oklahoma County, OK 
Website:  https://www.oklahomacounty.org 

Midwest City, OK 
Website:  https://www.midwestcityok.gov 

 

Edmond, OK 
Website:  https://www.edmondok.com 

 

We did a re-design and after talking with some other 

website companies, they were the best choice for us. They 

understood our needs and delivered exactly  

what our vision was, even better.  

Vicki M., Burrillville, RI 



 Page 6 

The Drupal content management system has opened up 

new areas we never could do with the old system.  Our 

residents can get more done just by visiting our website.  

Roger K., Stonington, CT 

Features & Functionality 

• Agenda Builder Module 

• Schedule Publishing 

• WebForms Module 

• Unpublish/Archive Content 

• WYSIWYG Editor 

• Dept/Board Specific News 

• Persistent Navigation 

• ADA Compliance 

• Job Opportunities 

• Schedule Expiration Dates 

• Versioning 

• Embed Video Player 

• Online File Center 

• Quick Links 

• Protected Email Addresses 

• Recyclopedia 

• FAQs 

• Audit Trail/History Log 

• Content Previewing 

• CAPTCHA Visitor Authentication 

• Printer Friendly Pages 

• Surveys & Polling 

• Bids & RFPs 

• Business Directory 

• “Review-On” Dating 

• Dynamic Breadcrumbs 

• SSL Certificates 

Content Management Functionality 

Communication Features 

• Email Notifications                    

(E-subscriber) 

• Dynamic Site Map 

• RSS Feeds 

• Facebook & Twitter Integration 

• Service Requests Forms 

• Urgent Alert Banners 

• Two-Way Blogging 

• Private Comment Forms 

• Rotating Bulletin Boards 

• Staff Directory 

• “Share this Page” 

Administrative Functionality 

• Intranet Options 

• User Roles & Permission 

Levels 

• Traffic Analysis 

• Broken Links Reporting 

• Domain Name 

Management 

• Quality Assurance 

Reports 

• Complete User History 

• Board Membership 

Duties 

• Menu Control 

 Design Features 

• Responsive Design 

• Rotating Mastheads 

• Dynamic News Modules 

• Urgent News Banners 

• Upcoming Meetings Module 

• Custom Subtitles 

• Cascading Navigation 

• Multiple Navigation Schemes 

• Media Library 

• Image Editor 

• Photo Gallery 

• Slide Shows 

• Captioning/ALT Text 

• Rotating Department 

Images 

• Image Administration 

• Rotating Bulletin Boards 

Graphic & Image Functionality 



 Page 7 

Implementation Phase Timeframe Deliverables 

Phase 1 

Strategy Sessions & Discovery 
1 Week 

• Define Core Objectives 

• Needs Assessment 

Phase 2 

Design & Architecture 
2-3 Weeks 

• Design Meeting with Client Website Committee 

• Homepage Options & Layout  

• Subpage Design and Layout 

• Finalize Design (once you are completely satisfied)  

Phase 3 

Site Implementation 
2-3 Weeks 

• Identify Global and Cascading Navigation (and related 

links) 

• Implement Design within CivicCMS 

Phase 4 

Content Development 
3-4 Weeks • Migrate Agreed Existing Content 

Phase 5 

Training & Education 
1 Week 

• Sessions for Content Editors and Site Administrators 

• Group and Individual Sessions 

Phase 6 

Deployment & Go-Live 
1Week 

• Final Quality Check of Website 

• Install and Activate Selected Modules 

• DNS & SEO Activities 

The support has been amazing from day one. We 

worked closely with your employees during initial 

setup stages, creating the webpage, training, and for 

follow-up. Your team of employees know what the 

City was looking for and created it with ease.  

Felicia B., Aberdeen, MD 

Typical Project Timeline 

Design creation, accessibility, usability guidance, content optimization, training - CivicPlus delivers all of this and more during the 

development of your CivicCMS new website. Your exact project timeline can vary based on determined project scope, project 

enhancements purchased, your availability for meeting coordination, action item return and completion, approval dates kept, and 

other factors. Based on our experience, the estimated timeline for the successful completion of your CivicCMS project is 

approximately 10-13 weeks.  



 Page 8 

Estimated Year 1 Investment 

All quotes are priced per project and presented in US dollars.  

Pricing is valid for 60 days from November 19th 2019 

One-Time Investment:  $ 8,000 

Annual Maintenance:    $ 2,000 

*Billed together in Year 1 

Alternative Payment Option : See bottom of page 9 

City of Pryor Creek, OK 

CIVICCMS Website Package 

Graphic Design 

 Custom Design 

 Re-Create Pryor Creek Portal Page 

 Fully Responsive Format  (Smart Phones, Tablets) 

Content Development 

 Create All Department & Board Pages 

 Contact Info, Staff Table, Welcome Text 

 Migration of 50 Pages, Agendas, Minutes, and Doc-

uments 

Staff Training 

 One Full Day (8 hours) of Online Group Training 

 Full Access to Library of Videos/Documentation 

Also Includes 

 Apache Solr Search Appliance 

 Google Analytics 

 E-Subscriber Mail Lists 

 Text & Email Alerts 

 Social Media Integration 

 Web Forms Builder 

 No Storage Limit on Future Pages & Files 

 Updates and Enhancements 

Secure Hosting 

 SSL Certificates 

 Tier 4 Data Center 

 Nightly Offsite Backups 

 Intrusion Detection, DDoS Mitigation  

Ongoing Customer Support 

 Unlimited Live Support ,Up to 3 Primary Users 

 Free Monthly Webinars 

 24/7 Technical Support 

 Online Help Library  

CIVICCMS Application 

 Annual CMS Usage License 

 Periodic Module Upgrades 

 ADA Compliant 

 Full Maintenance & Service Patches 

 Intranet 

 Business Directory 

 Agenda Manager 



 Page 9 

Year 2 and Beyond 
Annual Services 

     Beginning Year 2 Annual Services:   $ 2,000 

• Secure Hosting and Security Services 

• Software maintenance including service patches and system enhancements 

• 24/7 technical support and access to the Online Help Center 

• Unlimited Live Customer Support for Designated Users 

• Account Management Team  for ongoing support and web environment evolvement 

Each year of your contract, you’ll receive system enhancements, maintenance, optimization, and have full access to 

our support staff so your site stays up-to-date with our latest features and functionality. (Annual Hosting/Maintenance 

Services are subject to a cumulative annual 5% technology fee increase beginning Year 3  and beyond) 

The CivicPlus Advantage (CPA) payment alternative payment plan provides zero interest, level payments 

that divides the One-Time Implementation Investment expense of your project over the first three (3) 
years of your contract to assist with your initial out of pocket expense and budget allocation. Each pay-

ment also includes your Annual Hosting/Maintenance Services.  

CivicPlus Advantage - Alternate Payment Plan 

1st Year CPA  ......................... $ 4,667 
2nd Year CPA ........................ $ 4,667 
3rd Year CPA  ........................ $ 4,667 

4th Year Annual .................... $ 2,100 
(annual plus 5% technology fee) 

City of Pryor Creek, OK 



1300 Massachusetts Ave. | Foxborough, MA 01719 
302 S. 4th Street, Suite 500 | Manhattan, KS 66502 

www.civicplus.com 

City of Pryor, OK 
Citizen Request Management 

and 311 Solution 

Presented by: 

Richard L Jones 

Solutions Consultant 



  

November 19th 2019 

 

 
Brook Rouge 

Media Consultant 

3 N Adair St #2 

Pryor, OK 74361 

 

RE: CP Connect Citizen Request Management and 311 Solution Dear Contact and/or Selection Committee: 

 
Dear: Brook 

 
Our mission at CivicPlus is to help local government work better. Local governments are continually being 

asked to do more with less, and providing a transparent and open communication process with your citizens 
is vital. 

Technology can be the solution, but complicated applications can cause more issues than they solve. 
CivicPlus’ CP Connect Citizen Request Management and 311 Solution (CP Connect) will help you get more 

done in less time and in a transparent and positive way for your community. 
 

CP Connect is both comprehensive and easy-to-use. It offers your community a convenient way to 
communicate with you through their preferred communication channel and provides your staff with the tools 

needed to manage communications and outcomes. 
 

As an industry-leading Citizen Request Management Solution, CP Connect offers: 
 

• A single inbox location for all communication with automatic logging capabilities 
• Connection with your citizens on their terms with an easy-to-use single tool 
• A cloud-based solution accessible through your website by any tablet, smart phone, or computer 
• Built-in and custom tags available to allow smart filtering and logging of communication 
• Capability of attaching documents and photo files to any service request 
• Live and accessible 24/7/365 support team based in the United States 

 
When your citizens need to report a situation, provide comments, or even complain, you need an immediate 

and effective communication solution. CP Connect’s functionality allows you to quickly and efficiently 
manage these communications — saving you time, headaches, and providing transparency for your citizens. 

 
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Richard L Jones 

Solutions Consultant 

rjones@civicplus.com  
Direct Line 785.323.4713 



 Page 3 

Executive Summary 
CP  Connect will provide: 

   
Use 

Solution 

CP Connect allows you to increase your responsiveness to your citizens, streamline 

management of requests and inquiries across multiple departments, and report on work 

performed and constituent sentiments to assist you in decision-making and 

prioritization. 

  

Connect & Engage 

with Citizens 

Today’s society wants to be able to reach out and connect when convenient for them, 

from any device and through any communication channel available, and CP Connect 

provides the functionality needed. By leveraging a single tool to aggregate and manage 

all citizen communications, you can work better - not harder - while providing the 

personalized and responsive attention your community deserves. 

Consolidated 

Channels 

CP Connect automatically consolidates all communications into a single inbox through 

multiple channels including voice, text, email, webforms, and social media. Users can 

also log any constituent interaction manually (e.g. walk-ins) to ensure a complete record. 

Historical 

 

CP Connect allows you to view the full request history for any given request, as well as all 

the requests and comments associated with a given constituent. 

  
into 

Action 

All communications can be turned into Service Requests if action by the City of Pryor 

is required. Service Requests can be managed using pre-defined procedures that lay 

out the required steps to be taken. They can also be assigned city-wide to the 

appropriate User or team to take action. 

Search  All data is permanently available in CP Connect. There are multiple ways to locate past 

responses: by constituent or organization, by keyword, or by custom filters based on 

tags. 

Secure Cloud 

 

Provide peace of mind for your staff and community. Our solution is supported by an 

industry-leading, cloud-based hosting environment with vigilant 24/7/365 monitoring 

and continual system updating. 

 

Support 

Our helpful in-house support team is available via telephone, email, and live chat to 

ensure your complete and ongoing satisfaction with our products and service. 



 Page 4 

Project Team 

  

 Ben Sebree – Director of CP Connect Solution and Platform & Technology 

Ben has been instrumental in the CivicPlus development and rollout of CP Connect and brings years of 

experience working with local governments in the technology industry. He manages the product strategy 

and the overall company vision for CP Connect and personally engages customers for continuous product 

enhancements. 

    

    
  

 Dane Jager – Manager of Implementation Teams 

Dane leads our project management, web development, and training/consulting teams for CP Connect, 

CivicClerk, and CivicHR. Dane’s teams oversee the implementation of your software from contract signing 

through launch and ensure your experience with CivicPlus is positive and impactful. 

    

    
  

 Jeremy Wilson – Manager of Client Success 

Upon launch, Jeremy will assign a dedicated client success manager to your account to ensure you stay 

current on CivicPlus solutions. Your client success manager will be your main point of contact and will 

partner with you to create an ongoing strategy to better engage your employees. 

    

    
  

 Constance Huseth – Director of Client Support 

Upon launch of your system, any technical questions or issues may be reported to our CivicPlus Technical 

Support Team. This specialized team is directed by Constance on a three-tier, product- specific escalation 

process to report technical issues to product development teams and continually improve our online 

CivicPlus Help Center and best practices. 

    

    
  

 Jim Flynn – Director of Information Security and Infrastructure 

Jim is a passionate advocate for Information Security and performs a critical role in aligning CivicPlus 

Security Strategy with the needs of clients like you. He coordinates and manages our in-house experts on 

the technical aspects of your project. From data center operations to security and compliance, his team 

will ensure that your hosting and security needs are met. 



 Page 5 

Features & Functionality 

 

Our four-pronged approach to citizen request management means streamlined 
communications, insightful data extracts, enhanced citizen service, and ultimately, a more 

satisfied and engaged community. 
 
Communications 

• Centralize all communications – phone, SMS, email, Facebook, Twitter, webforms, and 
walk-ins – into a single, seamless inbox with no user login required. 

• Use the CP Connect interface to reply to communications directly and view replies 
through the citizen’s original communication channel. 

• Log and archive all communications for future reporting and assessment. 
 
Service Requests 

• Create department-specific Service Requests directly from citizen communications and 
manage through a single workflow. 

• Assign tasks to the appropriate user or team, share requests between departments, and 
tag to view and organize. Manage requests using pre-defined procedures as a time-
saving benefit. 

• Create tasks and reminders to streamline your engagement with your citizens, effortlessly 
informing them about the progress of their communications. 

 
Community Issues 

• Associate citizen feedback that doesn’t  require 
immediate action with Community Issue reports so 
that leaders never lose track of citizen insights. 

• Create issue comments and attach to reports about 
major policy, governance, and legislative issues. 
Empower local leaders to assess hot button issues in 
their areas. 

• Generate department specific reports that 
showcase trends and local improvements. 

 
Documented Engagements 

• Organize all citizen-specific engagements in a single hub, regardless of the communication channel. 
• Treat citizens as valued individuals by being able to refer to past discussions in 

current, relevant communications. 
• Identify macro trends in citizen concerns, needs, and desires for more impactful community service. 



 Page 6 

Comprehensive Citizen Submission History 
With citizen inquiries, requests, and feedback received via multiple channels, local leaders lack valuable insights to 
individual citizen concerns based on historical interactions. With CP Connect, all citizen-specific engagements are 
organized in a single hub, regardless of communication channel. Such document and comprehensive citizen 
submission history allows leaders to treat citizens as valued individuals by being able to refer to past discussions in 
current, relevant communications. It also allows administrators to identify macro trends in citizen concerns, needs, 
and desires for more impactful community service. 
 
Documents and photos can be attached and sent from the citizen to the City, and vice versa, as well as saved for 
future access and tracking. 
 
Mobile Access 
CP Connect gives citizens the convenience they want and need to contact their local government at anytime from 
anywhere using voice and SMS text messaging functionality. Such convenience means that citizens can submit 
service requests for needs such as pothole repairs or street light outages right when they identify them. 
 
You can also utilize the system to generate a phone number (temporary or permanent) by area code for citizens to 
use to call or text regarding a specific issue or event. This specific number can be routed to existing numbers, such as 
switchboards, call centers, landlines, or mobile phones. Instantly push this number out to citizens on social media 
and websites for maximum flexibility and privacy of end-user cell numbers. 
 
Custom User Permissions 
Administrators can create internal teams within CP Connect to enable collaboration across teams and departments 
for enhanced citizen service delivery. Teams can be setup to share their content with others or keep content private 
to the team. 
 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Compliance 
Local governments are required to respond to citizen requests 
for public information in a timely manner. When such requests 
are sent to administrators via multiple channels, clerks and 
other key personnel can spend valuable time searching for 
documents and responding to frequent requests. CP Connect 
helps to alleviate the manual process of responding to FOIA 
requests. 
 
Where non-user-friendly document repositories require IT 
departments to pull requested documents or reports, which 
can be timely and costly, with CP Connect any authorized 
content 
manager can easily pull a report or service requests from the front-end of the system and export it to a .csv or PDF 
file for citizen distribution in minutes, elevating transparency and meeting citizen expectations. 

Key Benefits 



 Page 7 

Optional Project 
Enhancement 

 CP Connect Core Website  

 
With the CP Connect Core Website, your employees will have quick access to the knowledge base you need to ensure 
your staff and citizens remain engaged and informed. Provide your community with a powerful online resource that 
promotes open and transparent access to your municipal offices and becomes an engaging communication hub for 
your community. 
 
Your CP Connect Core Website’s features include: 

•  
Knowledge Base – Access to information is essential. The CP Connect Core Website makes it easy for 
your employees to quickly view the information they need to get their jobs done quickly and efficiently. 

• Individual Theme – Your CP Connect Core Website includes a unique logo, background image, color palette, 
and secure URL. 

•  
Scalable Information – Easily add new content, edit old content, and keep page layout consistent through 
use of the site’s What You See Is What You Get (WYSIWYG) editor. This includes the ability to add global 
navigation categories and pages of information. 

 
 
 

  

Functionality Disclosure 
 
As CivicPlus continues to evolve and improve our solution to support our clients’ needs and goals, we reserve the 
right to upgrade, replace, modify, or terminate any of the features and functionality elements listed, at our sole 
discretion, and when feasible, providing reasonable notice to our clients of any changes. These features and 
functionality are offered on a gratuitous basis to our clients (no monetary value per feature) and should any changes 
be enacted, will not affect any terms in a signed agreement with CivicPlus. 



 Page 8 

Sample Implementation 



Page 9 



 Page 10 

With technology, unlimited support is crucial. Our live support personnel based in the United States are ready to 

answer your staff members’ questions and ensure their confidence in using our site. Our knowledgeable staff is 

available from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. (CST) to field your calls, emails, and live chat. Emergency services are available free of 

charge after regular hours with our on-call staff 24-hours a day. 

 

Through regularly scheduled reviews of site logs, error messages, servers, router activity, and the internet in general, 

our personnel often identify and correct issues before they ever affect our clients’ products. 

Around-the-Clock Service & Support 

Technical Support Maintenance 

• Dedicated support personnel available 7 a.m. – 7 p.m. 

(CST) Monday – Friday (excluding holidays) 

• 4-hour response during normal hours 

• 24/7 emergency support 

• CivicPlus Help Center - 24/7 access to online training 

manuals, troubleshooting solutions, and the CivicPlus 

Community 

• Full backups performed daily 

• Regularly scheduled upgrades, including fixes and 

other improvements 

• Frequent installation of OS system patches and 

enhancements 

• All updates are tested internally before being installed 

Our clients and their visitors have 24/7 access to our online Help Center where users can review articles, user guides, 

FAQs, and can get tips on best practices. The Help Center also provides our release notes to keep you in the loop on 

upcoming enhancements and maintenance. The Community Forum allows your staff and your users to interact with 

each other, send CivicPlus feedback and suggestions for future system enhancements, and view trending topics among 

members - along with other functional and engaging features and capabilities. 

www.civicplus.help—The Online Help Center 

Continuing Services 



Page 11 

Your system is monitored 24/7/365. CivicPlus’ extensive, industry-leading process and procedures for protecting and 
hosting your site is unparalleled. From our secure data center facilities to constant and vigilant monitoring and 
updating of your system, including 99.9% guaranteed up-time (excluding maintenance), we’ve got you covered. If 
you experience a DDoS attack or threat, CivicPlus has mitigation and DDoS Advanced Security options that are 
available to you at the time of event. 

Hosting & Security Features 

Data Center Bandwidth 

• Highly reliable data center & secure facility 

• Managed network infrastructure 

• On-site power backup & generators 

• Multiple telecom/network providers 

• Fully redundant network 

• System monitoring - 24/7/365 

• Multiple network providers in place 

• Unlimited bandwidth usage for normal business 

operations (does not apply in the event of a cyber 

attack) 

• Burst bandwidth - 22 Gb/s 

Hosting 

• Automated software updates 

• Server management & monitoring 

• Multi-tiered software architecture 

• Server software updates & security patches 

• Database server updates & security patches 

• Antivirus management & updates 

• Server-class hardware from nationally recognized 

provider 

• Redundant firewall solutions 

• High performance SAN with N+2 reliability 

Disaster Recovery 

• Emergency after-hours support, live agent (24/7) 

• On-line status monitor by Data Center 

• Event notification emails 

• 8-hour guaranteed recovery TIME objective (RTO) 

• 24-hour guaranteed recovery POINT objective 

(RPO) 

• Pre-emptive monitoring for disaster situations 

• Multiple, geographically diverse data centers 

DDoS Mitigation DDoS Advanced Security Coverage 

• Defined DDoS Attack Process 

• Identify attack source and type 

• Monitor attack for threshold* engagement 

 Not Included. Additional coverage available at time of event. 

Additional fees will apply. 

*THRESHOLDS: Traffic exceeds 25 Mb/s sustained for 2+ hours. Traffic over 1 Gb/s at any point during attack 

Redundant power sources and internet access ensures consistent and stable connections. We invest over $1.0M 
annually to ensure we adapt to the ever-changing security landscape while providing maximum availability. To help 
ensure your site is protected at the level you need, CivicPlus’ Included Hosting & Security Package is built into your 
solution. 

Hosting & Security 



 Page 12 

Investment Proposal 

All quotes are priced per project and presented in US dollars. 

Pricing is valid for 60 days from November 19th 2019. 

City of Pryor, OK 

One-Time Implementation Cost :   $3,600 

Annual Services (Year 2):   $3,000 

Project Implementation 
 

• CP Connect User Set-up of Five (5) Users 

• Citizen Import (from client-provided CSV database) 

• Webforms Set-up 

• Configuration and Best Practices Virtual Consulting Assistance 

• Four (4) Hours Virtual CivicTraining™ (includes two (2) administrative users) 

• Two (2) Hours Process Consulting 

Annual Services 
 

• Hosting & Security 

• 24/7 Technical Support and Access to the CivicPlus Help Center 

• Software Maintenance Including Service Patches and System Enhancements 

• Dedicated Client Success Manager 

• Annual Services are subject to a cumulative annual 5% technology fee increase beginning Year 3 

We  have endeavored to meet the City of Pryor’s needs and expectations for your newly designed website based on the 

information provided. This investment proposal is subject to change should additional functionality, custom development, or 

project enhancements, outside of the included scope, are added prior to contract signing. 

Billed together in Year 1 



 Page 13 

End of Year Promotion 

Project Pricing  

When you pair CP Connect with a CivicPlus Website and act before December 31st 2019 you are eligible for the 

following year end promotion. With CP Connect we will waive the implementation cost of $3,600 and 6 months of 

annual services, saving you an additional $1,500 dollars.  

  Total Investment -Year 1:   $1,500 

 

Annual Services (Year 2):   $3,000 
 
 



 Page 14 

Investment Proposal 

Project Pricing  

CivicPlus prices on a per-project basis. We have found that this type of pricing structure eliminates surprise costs and 

is overall more cost effective. Our goal is not to “nickel and dime” our clients with hidden fees or hourly rates. We 

have presented the most cost-effective solution while still meeting your needs. This model of pricing eliminates the 

uncertainty of paying by the hour and provides you with a concrete price that only varies if additional functionality of 

work outside of the original project scope is requested. 

Optional Enhancements  

The following items are not included in your project but can be provided as a scope adjustment or following the 

completion of project development. A quote and additional details can be provided upon request. 

 

 

*Additional Users (may be added and will be pro-rated depending on time of addition in the billing cycle) 

Functionality Options One-Time Annual 

06 - 24 Users* N/A $960 per user 

25 - 49 Users* N/A $768 per user 

50 - 99 Users* N/A $624 per user 

  

100+ Users (custom with Enterprise Level CP Connect) 

  

N/A 
Quote Upon 

Request 

Open311 Integration with Existing System 

(Requires Open311 Setup, Configuration, and Training) 

  

$2,500 

  

$500 

Additional Virtual Training per block of four (4) hours (includes 

two administrative users and up to eight end users) 

  

$625/block 

  
N/A 



I agree with this proposal and the details outlined herein. I understand that any  
additional work may incur additional fees. By signing this document you are entering 
into an agreement with Brooks Digital to utilize their services, maintain the new  
website, and be a facilitator for the City of Pryor and CivicPlus. 

Client or Organization Brooks Rouge

Date
11/27/2019

Brooks Digital is willing to discount it’s fee for this service and instead of $30 
per hour will charge $25 per hour, saving the city about $1,500 over the 12-13 
week building phase of this project. During this project if the city decides to add 
additional web components Brooks Digital will alert the city of any additional 
charges. 

Brooks Digital will invoice the city twice per month for hours worked. Any  
additional services required beyond what is outlined here may incur an  
additional charge.

Brook Rouge

Complete

Payment

BROOKS DIGITAL Proposal for the City of Pryor

BROOKS DIGITAL | (918) 261-4983 | brouge@brooksdigital.com

City of Pryor Creek
Mayor Larry Lees
P.O. Box 1167
Pryor, OK 74362
(918) 825-0888
leesl@pryorcreek.org

For Website Build and Maintenance, Brooks Digital will be responsible for 
facilitating communication between CivicPlus and the City of Pryor as well as 
maintaining content on the new site. Brook Rouge will be the primary point of 
contact between the City of Pryor and CivicPlus. Larry Lees, Mayor will be the 
second point of contact.

This proposal has two components. 1. For the initial build, contract Brooks  
Digital to work along side CivicPlus and the City of Pryor. For the first 12-13 
weeks of website development Brooks Digital will meet with the city officials 
that will be interfacing with the new site to help ensure a smooth transition and 
on behalf of the City of Pryor, communicate a clear understanding to CivicPlus 
as to what is needed. This initial build phase is anticipated to take 20-25 hours 
per week. 2. Beyond the original build time, we estimate, ongoing website 
maintenance should take 10-15 hours per week. 

Client

Job

Overview



ORDINANCE NO.___________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF A PART OF 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 21 
NORTH, RANGE 19 EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, 
MAYES COUNTY, OKLAHOMA INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS AND 
AS PART OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA; PROVIDING 
THAT THE NEWLY ANNEXED TERRITORY BE ZONED “CG” 
(COMMERCIAL GENERAL); AND PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND 
SEVERABLITY.  
 

 COMING BEFORE the City Council for the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, is the 
Petition for Annexation filed by the Oklahoma Ordnance Works Authority, a public trust, 
(hereinafter “OOWA”) in reference to the following: 
 
SECTION 1: JURISDICTIONAL FACTS 
 A Petition for Annexation was filed with the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma on 
December 13, 2019 by the OOWA.  In said Petition for Annexation, OOWA, requested that 
the City of Pryor Creek add the following described property into the corporate limits of the 
City: 

A tract of land situated in Southwest Quarter (SW/4) Section 31, Township 21 North, 
Range 19 East of the Indian Base and Meridian, Mayes County, Oklahoma, being 
more particularly described as follows to-wit: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SW/4, THENCE N88°28'26"E for a distance of 
140.00 feet along the South Line of said SW/4 to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE N1°35'52"W for a distance of 300.00 feet; 
THENCE S88°28'24"W for a distance of 140.00 feet to a point on the West Line of 
said SW/4; THENCE N1°35'54"W for a distance of 58.01 feet to a point on the 
Southerly Right-of-Way of the City of Tulsa's Water Line; 
THENCE N69°01'14"E for a distance of 783.28 feet along said Southerly Right-of-
Way; THENCE along a curve to the left having a radius of 5804.05 feet for a distance 
of 591.29 feet, being subtended by a chord of N66°06'13"E for a distance of 591.03 
feet, along said Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 603.22 feet; 
THENCE N88°25'43"E for a distance of 877.10 feet; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 240.50 feet to a point on the South Line of said 
SW/4; THENCE S88 25'43"W for a distance of 999.72 feet along said South Line; 
THENCE S88°28'26"W for a distance of 1022.72 feet along said South Line to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 



 Notice of the presentation of said Petition for Annexation was published at least once 
each week for two (2) successive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Pryor 
Creek.  The Petitioner, OOWA, by way of its Petition for Annexation has properly requested and 
consented to the annexation of the above described territory to the City.  The territory petitioned 
to be annexed is adjacent and contiguous to the City of Pryor Creek.  The territory petitioned to 
be annexed is vacant and unoccupied and no registered voter resides within the territory sought 
to be annexed.  Petitioner, OOWA, is the sole owner of the entirety which comprises the territory 
petitioned to be annexed and therefore is the owner of all the value of the property comprising 
the territory petitioned to be annexed.  The City of Pryor Creek finds that the Petition for 
Annexation satisfies all of the requirements of the Oklahoma Municipal Code. 
 
 The City of Pryor Creek finds that said property is adjacent and contiguous to the 
corporate limits of the City of Pryor Creek, is not part of any other incorporated municipality, and 
is owned by OOWA.  The City of Pryor Creek further finds that the notice published fully complies 
with Oklahoma law as to the form, giving notice that said Petition had been presented, setting 
forth the nature and purpose of said Petition, describing the property sought to be annexed, and 
reciting that the Petition was signed by the owner of the property sought to be annexed.  The 
City of Pryor Creek further finds that the requirements for annexation set forth in the Oklahoma 
Municipal Code have been fully satisfied. 
 
SECTION 2: ANNEXATION 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA, 
that, pursuant to the laws of the State of Oklahoma, and based on the facts and circumstances 
herein set forth, the following described property is annexed by the City of Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma into the corporate limits of the City and is added to the territory of the City of Pryor 
Creek, Oklahoma: 

A tract of land situated in Southwest Quarter (SW/4) Section 31, Township 21 North, 
Range 19 East of the Indian Base and Meridian, Mayes County, Oklahoma, being 
more particularly described as follows to-wit: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SW/4, THENCE N88°28'26"E for a 
distance of 140.00 feet along the South Line of said SW/4 to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE N1°35'52"W for a distance of 300.00 feet; 
THENCE S88°28'24"W for a distance of 140.00 feet to a point on the West Line of 
said SW/4; THENCE N1°35'54"W for a distance of 58.01 feet to a point on the 
Southerly Right-of-Way of the City of Tulsa's Water Line; 
THENCE N69°01'14"E for a distance of 783.28 feet along said Southerly Right-of-
Way; THENCE along a curve to the left having a radius of 5804.05 feet for a distance 
of 591.29 feet, being subtended by a chord of N66°06'13"E for a distance of 591.03 
feet, along said Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 603.22 feet; 



THENCE N88°25'43"E for a distance of 877.10 feet; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 240.50 feet to a point on the South Line of said 
SW/4; THENCE S88 25'43"W for a distance of 999.72 feet along said South Line; 
THENCE S88°28'26"W for a distance of 1022.72 feet along said South Line to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING 

 
and that the Official Zoning Map of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, shall be amended to reflect 
the change in the boundaries resulting from this annexation.  The Mayor is hereby authorized 
and directed to file and record a duly certified copy of this Ordinance, together with an accurate 
map or plat of the annexed property, in the office of the Mayes County Clerk and with the Ad 
Valorem Division of the Oklahoma Tax Commission, and to take appropriate measures to 
implement this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3: ZONING 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA, 
that pursuant to Section 10-1-10.E of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma providing for the assignment of the zoning classification to territory annexed to the 
City, that the following described tract of land newly annexed into the City of Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma is hereby classified as “CG” (Commercial General), to-wit: 

A tract of land situated in Southwest Quarter (SW/4) Section 31, Township 21 North, 
Range 19 East of the Indian Base and Meridian, Mayes County, Oklahoma, being 
more particularly described as follows to-wit: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SW/4, THENCE N88°28'26"E for a 
distance of 
140.00 feet along the South Line of said SW/4 to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE N1°35'52"W for a distance of 300.00 feet; 
THENCE S88°28'24"W for a distance of 140.00 feet to a point on the West Line of 
said SW/4; THENCE N1°35'54"W for a distance of 58.01 feet to a point on the 
Southerly Right-of-Way of the City of Tulsa's Water Line; 
THENCE N69°01'14"E for a distance of 783.28 feet along said Southerly Right-of-
Way; THENCE along a curve to the left having a radius of 5804.05 feet for a distance 
of 591.29 feet, being subtended by a chord of N66°06'13"E for a distance of 591.03 
feet, along said Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 603.22 feet; 
THENCE N88°25'43"E for a distance of 877.10 feet; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 240.50 feet to a point on the South Line of said 
SW/4; THENCE S88 25'43"W for a distance of 999.72 feet along said South Line; 
THENCE S88°28'26"W for a distance of 1022.72 feet along said South Line to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING 
 



and that the Official Zoning Map of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, shall be 
amended to reflect the establishment of zoning of the annexed territory as reflected 
in this Section 3. 
 
SECTION 4: REPEALER 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are hereby repealed to the 
extent of any such conflict. 
 
SECTION 5: SEVERABLITY 
 

If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is, for any 
reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 
be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 
 
Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 
this         day of                                                                  , 2020. 
        

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
 

________________________________ 
Larry Lees, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kim Ritchie, City Attorney 
Dated:_________________________ 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
CONCERNING APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEES TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TRUST 
AUTHORITY FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA. 
 
WHEREAS, Arianna Derr has been appointed to Seat #1 of the Economic Development Trust 
Authority, term ending January 13, 2024, and 
WHEREAS, Darrell Moore has been appointed to Seat #2 of the Economic Development 
Trust Authority, term ending January 13, 2024, and 
WHEREAS, Fred Sordahl has been appointed to Seat #3 and has been appointed as Chairman 
 of the Economic Development Trust Authority, term ending January 13, 2023, and  
WHEREAS, Don Berger has been appointed to Seat #4 of the Economic Development Trust 
Authority, term ending January 13, 2023, and 
WHEREAS, Scott Miller has been appointed to Seat #5 of the Economic Development Trust 
Authority, term ending January 13, 2022, and 
WHEREAS, Gene Dillard has been appointed to Seat #6 of the Economic Development Trust 
Authority, term ending January 13, 2022, and 
WHEREAS, Larry Williams has been appointed to Seat #7 and has been appointed at Vice 
Chairman of the Economic Development Trust Authority, and 
WHEREAS, Municipal Utility Board General Manager Jared Crisp and City of Pryor Creek 
Mayor Larry Lees have been appointed as Ex-Officio members of the Economic Development 
Trust Authority, and 
WHEREAS, Darla Coats has been appointed as Secretary of the Economic Development Trust 
Authority, term ending January 13, 2022,  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA: That the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma acting by and 
through the Mayor and City Council does by these premises appoint the above to the 
Economic Development Trust Authority. 
 
 APPROVED, this ____ day _____________________, 2020 in regular session of the City 
Council for the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Larry Lees, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
_________________________________ 
K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 
 
 
Dated: _________________________ 



Page 1 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 7TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 7TH, 2020 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date and time in 
the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, Oklahoma.  This meeting was 
followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works Authority.  Notice of these meetings was posted 
on the East bulletin board located outside to the South of the entrance doors and the City website at 
www.pryorcreek.org.  Notice was also e-mailed to The Paper newspaper and e-mailed to the Council members.   

1. CALL TO ORDER, PRAYER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL. 
 

Mayor Lees called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  The Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance were led by Kim 
Ritchie.  Roll Call was conducted by City Clerk Eva Smith. Council members present included:  Jon Ketcher, 
Choya Shropshire, Dennis Nance, Steve Smith, Randy Chitwood, Briana Brakefield, Jill Sherman and Zac 
Doyle.  Members absent:  none. 
 

Department Heads and other City Officials present: City Attorney Kim Ritchie, Police Chief Dennis Nichols, 
Assistant Police Chief James Willyard, Street Superintendent Buddy Glenn, Golf Superintendent Dennis 
Bowman, Library Director Cari Rerat and Building Inspector Kenneth Young. 
 

Others:  Police Captain Kevin Tramel, Librarian R. Scott McCall, Park Board Chairman Bill Kannegiesser, 
Park Board member Pat Richard, Kemmie Shropshire, Larry Williams, Jeremy Ledbetter, Chris Gonthier, 
Dave LaGere and Terry Aylward. 
 

2.  DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS IF NEEDED: 
a.  Building Inspector 

Young reported that there were 32 permits sold and 81 inspections done in December for a total of $4,159.50.  
To give everyone an idea of the progression of work, in 2018 there were 694 inspections done and in 2019, 
909 inspections were done.  This is a 31% increase.  There is a great deal of work being done in Pryor Creek. 
 

b.  Emergency Management 
No report. 
 

c.  Fire 
No report. 
 

d.  Golf 
No report. 
 

e.  Library 
Rerat reported that they are still working on compiling the statistics from 2019.  There will be a Murder 
Mystery fundraiser for Friends of the Library on January 28th, 2020 at Fat Toad Brewery. 
 

f.  Parks / Cemetery 
No report. 
 

g.  Police 
Willyard handed out a report to Council. 
 

h.  Recreation Center 
No report. 

 
i.  Street 

Glenn reported that they are still cleaning ditches, trimming trees and working on street and sidewalk repairs.  
H&G Paving has begun their work on the street project. 
 

3.  PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
(LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES.) 

a.  R. Scott McCall regarding Lewis and Clark Foundation and Nathaniel Pryor. 
Librarian R. Scott (Mac) McCall reported that on December 7th, 2019 he received a call from Mr. James 
Mallory, Vice Chairman of the Lewis and Clark Trust Incorporated.  He requested that a wreath be placed on 

http://www.pryorcreek.org/


Page 2 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 7TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

the grave of Sgt. Nathaniel Pryor and a photograph be taken and sent to him, as a part of the Wreaths Across 
America Campaign.  Mr. Mallory was very appreciative and sent a thank-you note and Lewis and Clark 
coasters to show appreciation for participation. 
 

4.  MAYOR’S REPORT: 
a.  Discussion and possible action regarding repealing the nomination of David Stewart as Trustee #7 of 

the Pryor Economic Development Trust Authority. 
Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Nance to approve repealing the nomination of David Stewart as 
Trustee #7 of the Pryor Economic Development Trust Authority.  Voting yes:  Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, 
Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle.  Voting no:  none. 
 
b.  Discussion and possible action regarding nomination and confirmation of Larry Williams as Trustee 

#7 of the Pryor Economic Development Trust Authority. 
Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Chitwood to approve nomination and confirmation of Larry 
Williams as Trustee #7 of the Pryor Economic Development Trust Authority.  Voting yes:  Shropshire, Nance, 
Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher.  Voting no:  none. 
 

c.  Discussion with no action regarding replacement of three “Welcome to Pryor Creek” signs. 
No action.  Mayor stated he would get some quotes. 
 

d.  Discussion with no action regarding the non-exclusive capital improvement projects named in 
Resolution No. 2019-3. 

No action.  Discussion only. 
 

5.  CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
a.  Public Hearing on the question of annexation to the City of Pryor Creek and establishment of zoning 

classification upon the annexation of the following described territory pursuant to petition for 
annexation filed by the OOWA requesting annexation of the territory commonly known as "The 

District", said territory being legally described as follows, to-wit: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SW/4, THENCE N88°28'26"E for a 
distance of 140.00 feet along the South Line of said SW/4 to the POINT OF BEGINNING;  
THENCE N1°35'52"W for a distance of 300.00 feet; 
THENCE S88°28'24"W for a distance of 140.00 feet to a point on the West Line of said 
SW/4;  
THENCE N1°35'54"W for a distance of 58.01 feet to a point on the Southerly Right-of-
Way of the City of Tulsa's Water Line; 
THENCE N69°01'14"E for a distance of 783.28 feet along said Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE along a curve to the left having a radius of 5804.05 feet for a distance of 591.29 
feet, being subtended by a chord of N66°06'13"E for a distance of 591.03 feet, along said 
Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 603.22 feet;  
THENCE N88°25'43"E for a distance of 877.10 feet; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 240.50 feet to a point on the South Line of said 
SW/4;  
THENCE S88 25'43"W for a distance of 999.72 feet along said South Line; 
THENCE S88°28'26"W for a distance of 1022.72 feet along said South Line to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING. 

City Attorney Ritchie read the agenda item and legal description. 
 

b.  Discussion and possible action to convene Public Hearing. 
Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Smith to convene Public Hearing.  No vote was taken. 
 

c.  Request for comments in support or in opposition of annexation to the City of Pryor Creek. 
Floor was opened for comments in support or in opposition of annexation to the City of Pryor Creek. 
 
d.  Discussion and possible action to adjourn from Public Hearing and resume regular Council meeting. 
Motion was made by Ketcher, second by Smith to adjourn from Public Hearing and resume regular Council 
meeting.  Voting yes:  Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher.  Voting 
no:  none. 
 

e.  Entertain Motion to waive reading of legal description of property which was the subject of the 
preceding public hearing on annexation and which is the subject of item f of the agenda. 



Page 3 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 7TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

Motion was made by Brakefield, second by Smith to waive reading of legal description of property which was 
the subject of the preceding public hearing on annexation and which is the subject of item f of the agenda.  
Voting yes:  Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire.  Voting no:  none. 
 
f.  First reading of an ordinance annexing territory to the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma and assigning 

zoning classification of "Commercial General" (CG) to the annexed territory; said annexed territory 
being legally described as follows, to-wit: 

Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said SW/4, THENCE N88°28'26"E for a 
distance of 140.00 feet along the South Line of said SW/4 to the POINT OF BEGINNING;  
THENCE N1°35'52"W for a distance of 300.00 feet; 
THENCE S88°28'24"W for a distance of 140.00 feet to a point on the West Line of said 
SW/4;  
THENCE N1°35'54"W for a distance of 58.01 feet to a point on the Southerly Right-of-
Way of the City of Tulsa's Water Line; 
THENCE N69°01'14"E for a distance of 783.28 feet along said Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE along a curve to the left having a radius of 5804.05 feet for a distance of 591.29 
feet, being subtended by a chord of N66°06'13"E for a distance of 591.03 feet, along said 
Southerly Right-of-Way; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 603.22 feet;  
THENCE N88°25'43"E for a distance of 877.10 feet; 
THENCE S1°34'17"E for a distance of 240.50 feet to a point on the South Line of said 
SW/4;  
THENCE S88 25'43"W for a distance of 999.72 feet along said South Line; 
THENCE S88°28'26"W for a distance of 1022.72 feet along said South Line to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING.   

No action.  Ritchie read ordinance annexing territory to the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma and assigning 
zoning classification of “Commercial General” (CG) to the annexed territory, less the legal description. 
 

6.  DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON CONSENT AGENDA. 

 
a. Approve minutes of the December 17th, 2019 Council meeting. 
b. Approve payroll purchase orders through January 10th, 2020. 
c. Approve claims for purchase orders through January 7th, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 

d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders.  
  There were no deficient purchase orders. 

e. Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $47,603.00 from 
Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 including all options after $1,000.00 trade-
in to Kansas Golf and Turf for Smithco Sprayer for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids 
received.  Other bids received:  P&K Equipment: John Deere gas sprayer at $39,171.68, diesel 
sprayer at $40,769.96, each include a $2,000.00 trade-in offer; PTP: Toro at $41,181.20, 
includes a $1,000.00 trade-in offer. 

f. Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $28,560.83 from 
Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419  to P&K Equipment, Inc. for electric John 
Deere Greens Mower for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids received.  Other bids 
received:  P&K: John Deere hydraulic at $34,459.50;  PTP: Toro at $32,422.00;  KGT: 
Jacobson at $26,500.00 with add-on of lights. 

g. Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $6,600.00 from 
Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 to P&K Equipment, Inc. for Buffalo Debris 

(Items deemed non-controversial and routine in nature to be approved by one motion without discussion.  Any Council 
member wishing to discuss an item may request it be removed and placed on the regular agenda.) 

FUNDS PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER TOTALS 
GENERAL 1920191421 - 1920191369 81,044.75 
STREET & DRAINAGE 1920191397 - 1920190877 14,472.76 
GOLF COURSE 1920191315 - 1920191406 11,419.92 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 1920191362 - 1920191346 17,562.35 
REAL PROPERTY ACQUIS. RESERVE 1920191415 72.00 
POLICE TRAINING FEES 911142B 2,793.00 
RECREATION CENTER 1920191324 - 1920191355 17,579.27 
E-911 1920191375 - 1920191386 146.71 
DONATIONS & EARMARKED 1920191387 180.00 
   

 TOTAL 145,270.76 
   
 BLANKETS  

911144B VISUAL FORCE INC. 3,000.00 
911145B ROBERTS AUTO CENTER 15,000.00 
911146B HAMILL METALS 5,000.00 

   
 TOTAL 23,000.00 



Page 4 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 7TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

Blower for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids received.  Other bids received:  KGT: 
Turfco at $7,400.00; PTP: Toro at $8,043.92.   

h. Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $21,226.50 from 
Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419  to P&K Equipment, Inc. for John Deere 
Tractor for Rough Mower without loader from bids received.  Other bids received:  Kubota: 
MX5200DT at $23,017.27, MX5200DT w/Front Loader at $27,611.49, MX5200HST at 
$24,207.55, MX5200HST w/Front Loader at $28,801.77, M6060HD at $27,053.07, M6060HD 
w/Front Loader at $32,724.89 – all prices are before a $4,750.00 trade-in offer; Chupp: Massey 
Ferguson at $26,900.00 before $3,700.00 trade-in offer.  John Deere Tractor comes with a 6-
year power train warranty. 

i. Discussion and possible action regarding reappointing Mayor as representative to the Grand 
Gateway Board of Directors for 2020, or accepting nominations from Council. 

j. Discussion and possible action regarding an expenditure in the amount of $2,865.50 to Clifford 
Power for repair of the Generac Generator at the Pryor Creek Police Department, from Police 
Repair and Maintenance Account #02-215-5091. 

k. Discussion and possible action regarding accepting a contribution from the Cherokee Nation in 
the amount of $15,000.00 for the purpose of assisting with the cost of new splash pad features 
in Whitaker Park, to be deposited in the Parks Donation Account #96-000-4508.  This is a 
Parks Department project targeted for completion in Fiscal Year 2019-2020.   

Motion was made by Brakefield, second by Smith to approve items a – k, less items a, c, e, f, h and k.  Voting 
yes:  Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance.  Voting no:  none. 
 

a. Approve minutes of the December 17th, 2019 Council meeting. 
Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve minutes of the December 17th, 2019 Council 
meeting.  Voting yes:  Chitwood, Brakefield, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Smith.  Abstaining, counting as a 
no vote:  Sherman and Nance.  Voting no:  none. 

 
c.  Approve claims for purchase orders through January 7th, 2020. 

Motion was made by Smith, second by Brakefield to approve claims for purchase orders through January 7th, 
2020.  Voting yes:  Brakefield, Sherman, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood.  Voting no:  Doyle. 

 
e.  Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $47,603.00 from Properties – 
Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 including all options after $1,000.00 trade-in to Kansas Golf and 
Turf for Smithco Sprayer for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids received.  Other bids received:  
P&K Equipment: John Deere gas sprayer at $39,171.68, diesel sprayer at $40,769.96, each include a 

$2,000.00 trade-in offer; PTP: Toro at $41,181.20, includes a $1,000.00 trade-in offer. 
Motion was made by Shropshire, second by Chitwood to approve expenditure in the amount of $47,603.00 
from Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 including all options after $1,000.00 trade-in to 
Kansas Golf and Turf for Smithco Sprayer for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids received.  Other bids 
received:  P&K Equipment: John Deere gas sprayer at $39,171.68, diesel sprayer at $40,769.96, each include 
a $2,000.00 trade-in offer; PTP: Toro at $41,181.20, includes a $1,000.00 trade-in offer.  Voting yes:  
Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield.  Voting no:  none. 

 
f.  Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $28,560.83 from Properties – 
Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 to P&K Equipment, Inc. for electric John Deere Greens Mower 

for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids received.  Other bids received:  P&K: John Deere hydraulic 
at $34,459.50; PTP: Toro at $32,422.00; KGT: Jacobson at $26,500.00 with add-on of lights. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve expenditure in the amount of $28,560.83 from 
Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 to P&K Equipment, Inc. for electric John Deere Greens 
Mower for the Pryor Creek Golf Course from bids received.  Other bids received:  P&K: John Deere 
hydraulic at $34,459.50; PTP: Toro at $32,422.00; KGT: Jacobson at $26,500.00 with add-on of lights.  
Voting yes: Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman.  Voting no:  none. 

 
h.  Discussion and possible action regarding expenditure in the amount of $21,226.50 from Properties – 

Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419 to P&K Equipment, Inc. for John Deere Tractor for Rough 
Mower without loader from bids received.  Other bids received:  Kubota: MX5200DT at $23,017.27, 

MX5200DT w/Front Loader at $27,611.49, MX5200HST at $24,207.55, MX5200HST w/Front Loader at 
$28,801.77, M6060HD at $27,053.07, M6060HD w/Front Loader at $32,724.89 – all prices are before a 
$4,750.00 trade-in offer; Chupp: Massey Ferguson at $26,900.00 before $3,700.00 trade-in offer.  John 

Deere Tractor comes with a 6-year power train warranty. 
Motion was made by Smith, second by Shropshire to approve expenditure in the amount of $21,226.50 from 
Properties – Capital Outlay Account #44-445-5419  to P&K Equipment, Inc. for John Deere Tractor for 
Rough Mower without loader from bids received.  Other bids received:  Kubota: MX5200DT at $23,017.27, 
MX5200DT w/Front Loader at $27,611.49, MX5200HST at $24,207.55, MX5200HST w/Front Loader at 



Page 5 of 5 
 
  MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 7TH, 2020          PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
 

$28,801.77, M6060HD at $27,053.07, M6060HD w/Front Loader at $32,724.89 – all prices are before a 
$4,750.00 trade-in offer; Chupp: Massey Ferguson at $26,900.00 before $3,700.00 trade-in offer.  John Deere 
Tractor comes with a 6-year power train warranty.  Voting yes:  none.  Voting no:  Ketcher, Shropshire, 
Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle. 

 
k.  Discussion and possible action regarding accepting a contribution from the Cherokee Nation in the 
amount of $15,000.00 for the purpose of assisting with the cost of new splash pad features in Whitaker 

Park, to be deposited in the Parks Donation Account #96-000-4508.  This is a Parks Department project 
targeted for completion in Fiscal Year 2019-2020.   

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Nance to approve accepting a contribution from the Cherokee 
Nation in the amount of $15,000.00 for the purpose of assisting with the cost of new splash pad features in 
Whitaker Park, to be deposited in the Parks Donation Account #96-000-4508.  This is a Parks Department 
project targeted for completion in Fiscal Year 2019-2020.   
 

Chitwood thanked the Cherokee Nation for their contribution. 
 

Voting yes:  Shropshire, Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, Doyle.  Abstaining, counting as a no 
vote:  Ketcher.  Voting no:  none. 
 

7.  COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
a. Budget and Personnel (Doyle) 

Doyle reported that Budget and Personnel Committee will meet on January 14th, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 
 

b. Ordinance and Insurance (Sherman) 
Sherman reported she plans to have a meeting at the end of January. 

 
c. Street (Smith) 

Smith had no report. 
 

8.  UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS.  
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

 

There was no unforeseeable business. 
 

9.  ADJOURN. 
 

Motion was made by Smith, second by Ketcher to adjourn.  Voting yes:  Nance, Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, 
Sherman, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire.  Voting no:  none. 

 
PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 
Meeting was called to order at 7:20 p.m. 
 

2.  APPROVE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 17TH, 2019 MEETING. 
Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Smith to approve minutes of December 17th, 2019 meeting.  
Voting yes:  Smith, Chitwood, Brakefield, Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire.  Abstaining, counting as a no vote:  
Sherman and Nance.  Voting no:  none. 

 
3.  UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 

(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 
There was no unforeseeable business. 

 
4.  ADJOURN. 

Motion was made by Ketcher, second by Smith to adjourn.  Voting yes:  Chitwood, Brakefield, Sherman, 
Doyle, Ketcher, Shropshire, Nance, Smith.  Voting no:  none. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A. CHAIRMAN LARRY LEES 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK / P.P.W.A. SECRETARY EVA SMITH 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 

























































































HOTEL / MOTEL TAX 
ALLOCATION GRANT 

PROJECT APPLICATION
To be considered for the City of Pryor Creek Hotel / Motel Tax Allocation Grant, please complete the 

form below.

Street address:

Street address line 2:

City: State: Zip code:

Contact Person
First name: Last name:

Phone number: E-mail:

Is your organization a non-profit or public tax-exempt organization as defined under Section 501(c)
(3) of the Internal Revenue Code?

Yes
No

Requested amount: Applicant's Match amount: Total Project Budget:



Description of event or project summary: 
Provide a paragraph, a concise summary of your request and what it will accomplish. If your 
request is part of a larger project, you may briefly describe the over all project. However, please 
focus the bulk of your answer on the specific element for which you are requesting funding.

Where and when will the event take place?

Resources available for project / event:



PROJECT BUDGET 
Please detail the budget for your project. Specify whether your various match items will be cash or 
in-kind. 

Pro-Forma  
Project Title:

Revenues:

Total Requested from Hotel / Motel:

Total Project Revenues:

Expenses:

Advertising

Promotional Printing

Miscellaneous expenses:

Total Expenses:

 































































1 
 

Bank of Commerce 
PO Box 1047 
Pryor, OK 74362 

LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of __________, _____, by and between Bank of 
Commerce, Pryor, Oklahoma, hereinafter referred to as LESSOR, and the City of Pryor Creek, of Mayes County, 
Oklahoma, hereinafter referred to as LESSEE acting by and through its City Council, pursuant to a resolution duly 
adopted at a Board meeting on the ___ day of ______, _____. 
 
LESSOR leases to LESSEE AND LESSEE leases from LESSOR that certain Equipment described as follows: 

See Exhibit  “A” attached hereto 
 

ARTICLE I 
LEASE PAYMENTS 

 
Subject to the provisions of Article 18, LESSEE shall pay as lease payments for the equipment descripted in Exhibit A 
the sums described in Exhibit B (Payment Schedule), with ____________ being the first payment and continuing each 
month thereafter by the _____ day of each month, consisting of principal and interest and one (1) final installment 
payment consisting of the full amount of the principal and all accrued interest remaining due and payable on the 
maturity date of __________. LESSEE warrants that funds sufficient to pay said lease now, or will be, legally at the 
disposal of LESSEE and that the obligation assumed by the LESSEE hereunder is not in excess of the income and 
revenues provided for such purposes.  
The total purchase price, exclusive of interest, of the leased equipment is ______.   The interest rate is 2.25%. 
 

ARTICLE II 
DELIVERY OF EQUIPMENT 

 
LESSOR shall use all reasonable diligence to deliver the leased equipment to LESSEE on the execution of this lease, 
but shall not be liable to LESSEE for any failure or delay in obtaining the equipment or making delivery if LESSOR 
shall have exercised reasonable diligence in attempting to make such delivery. 
 

ARTICLE   III 
USE OF EQUIPMENT 

 
LESSEE shall not use or permit the use of the leased equipment in a negligent or improper manner or in violation of 
any law. 
 

 
ARTICLE   IV 

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 
 
Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, all service, materials, and repairs in connection with the use of the 
equipment during the lease term, shall be at the LESSEE’S expense. LESSEE agrees to maintain the equipment at their 
own expense. 
 

 
 
 
 

 



2 
 

 
ARTICLE   V 

RISK OF LOSS AND DAMAGE 
 
LESSEE shall bear all risks of damage or loss of the equipment.   All replacement, repairs, or substitutions of parts or 
equipment shall be at the cost and expense of the LESSEE and shall be accessions to the equipment. LESSEE at all 
times and at LESSEE’S expense, shall keep the equipment in good working order, condition and repair, reasonable 
wear and tear excepted.    The lease payment shall not be prorated or abated while the equipment is being serviced or 
repaired. 
 

ARTICLE   VI 
INDEMNITY OF LESSOR 

 
To the extent permitted by law, LESSEE shall indemnify LESSOR against, and hold LESSOR harmless from any and 
all claims, actions, proceedings, expenses, damages or liabilities, including attorney fees and court costs, arising in 
connection with the use of the equipment, including, but not limited to, its selection, possession, use, and operation. 
 

ARTICLE   VII 
ALTERATIONS 

 
The LESSEE will not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the equipment without LESSOR’S prior 
written consent unless such alterations, additions or improvements may be readily removed without damage to the 
equipment. 
 

ARTICLE   VIII 
ASSIGNMENT 

 
Without LESSOR’S prior written consent, the LESSEE will neither  (1) assign, transfer, pledge or grant any security 
interest in or otherwise dispose of this lease or the equipment or (2) sublet or lend the equipment or permit it to be used 
by anyone other than LESSEE OR LESSEE’S employees. 
 

ARTICLE   IX 
DISCLAIMER OR WARRANTIES 

 
LESSEE   acknowledges and agrees that the equipment is of a size, design and capacity selected by LESSEE; that the 
LESSOR is neither a manufacturer nor a vendor of such equipment; and, that the LESSOR has not made, and does not 
hereby make, any representation, warranty, or covenant, expressed or implied, with respect the merchant ability, 
condition, quality, durability, design, operation, fitness for use, or suitability of the equipment in any respect 
whatsoever or in connection with or for the purposes and use of LESSEE, or any other representation,  warranty or 
covenant of any kind or character,  express or implied, with respect thereto, and LESSOR shall not be obligated or 
liable for actual, incidental,  consequential, or other damages of or to LESSEE or any other person or entity arising out 
of or in connection  with the use or performance of the equipment and the maintenance thereof. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
 

ARTICLE   X 
EVENT OF DEFAULT 

 
The term,  “Even of Default”, as used herein, means the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:   (1) 
LESSEE fails to make any lease payment  (or any other payment) as may become due in accordance with the terms of 
this lease;  (2) LESSEE fails to perform or observe any other covenant, condition, or agreement to performed or 
observed by it hereunder;  (3) the discovery by LESSOR that any statement, representation, or warranty made by 
LESSEE in this lease or in writing delivered by  LESSEE is false, misleading, or erroneous  in any material respect;  or  
(4)  an attachment,  levy or execution is threatened or levied upon or against the  equipment. 
 

ARTICLE   XI 
REMEDIES 

 
Upon default by the LESSEE, the Equipment shall be surrendered and delivered to the LESSOR and the LESSOR may 
take possession of it where ever it may be found, with or without process of law, for that purpose may enter upon the 
premises of the LESSEE.   On default, the LESSEE by operation of law or otherwise, shall have no right, title or 
interest in the Equipment or in its possession or use and the LESSOR shall retain all lease payments and other sums 
paid by LESSEE under this agreements with respect to the Real Estate. 
 

ARTICLE   XII 
RETURN OF EQUIPMENT 

 
Upon the expiration of the Lease term and unless the option to purchase hereinafter set forth is exercised, the LESSEE 
shall return the Real Estate to the LESSOR in the same condition as when received, less reasonable wear and tear. 
 

ARTICLE   XIII 
OPTION TO PURCHASE 

 
If LESSEE is not in default in LESSEE’S obligations under the lease, LESSEE shall have the option to purchase the 
equipment “AS IS” at any time during the lease Upon payment of the purchase price plus interest due LESSOR.  
LESSOR will then deliver title to the equipment to the LESSEE.  Unless the LESSEE exercises this purchase option, 
LESSEE has no ownership interest in the equipment, except LESSEE’S right to possess and use the equipment under 
the terms and conditions of this lease. 
 

ARTICLE   XIV 
WAIVER 

 
Failure of LESSOR in any one or more instances to insist on the performance of any of the terms of this lease or to 
exercise any right or privilege contained herein or the waiver of any breach of any terms of this lease shall not hereafter 
be construed as a waiver of such terms which shall continue in force as if no such waive had occurred. 
 
 

ARTICLE XV 
NOTICES 

 
Any notice to be given under this agreement shall be deemed given when sent by registered mail or certified mail to 
address herein contained of the party to be notified. 
 
 



4 
 

ARTICLE XVI 
GOVERNING LAW 

 
This lease shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Oklahoma. 
 

ARTICLE XVII 
SUCCESSION 

 
This agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties. 
 

 
ARTICLE XVIII 

 
 
This agreement shall terminate on _______________, unless the same is renewed by mutual ratification in accordance 
with the provisions of 62 O.S.  430.1 and 70 O.S. 5-117.  Lessee agrees that unless the Lessee votes not to ratify this 
agreement for the next ensuing fiscal year at its regular meeting, then such non-action by the LESSEE shall be 
construed as ratification of the contract for the next ensuring fiscal year.  Lessor hereby ratifies the continuation of the 
agreement through ______________________.  Lessor and Lessee agree that under no circumstances will the 
agreement be extended beyond ______________.  When the lease, by prepayment or as scheduled in Exhibit B, 
attached, shall have paid a sum equal to the purchase price plus interest at the agreed rate, then in the event, the 
equipment shall become the property of the Lessee and Lessor agrees to execute and deliver to Lessee a good and 
sufficient bill of sale or other proper evidence of title thereto. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIX 
INSURANCE 

 
Lessee, will, at its expense, maintain at all times during the Lease Term, fire and extended coverage, public liability 
and property damage insurance with respect to the Lease Facilities in such amounts, covering such risks and 
obligations set forth in Article V, and with such insurers as shall be satisfactory to Lessor, or, with Lessor's prior 
written consent, may self-insure against any or all such risks.  In no event will the insurance limits be less than the 
amount of the then applicable Purchase Option with respect to such Lease Facilities. Each insurance policy will 
name Lessee as an insured and Lessor or its assigns as an additional insured, and will contain a clause requiring 
the insurer to give Lessor a least thirty (30) days prior written notice of any alteration in the terms of such policy or 
the cancellation thereof.  The proceeds of any such policies will be payable to Lessee and Lessor or its assigns as their 
interests may appear. 

 
Upon acceptance of the Lease Facilities and upon each insurance renewal date, Lessee will deliver to Lessor a 
certificate evidencing such insurance. If at any time during the Lease Term, Lessee shall not have provided 
Lessor with such certificate, Lessor may obtain the above described insurance, and Lessee will reimburse Lessor 
upon demand of the costs thereof including interest at the overdue rate from the date that Lessor incurred such cost 
to the date of reimbursement by Lessee. In the event that Lessee has been permitted to self-insure against the risks 
and obligations set forth in Article V, Lessee will furnish Lessor with a letter or certificate to such effect. In the 
event of any loss, damage, injury or accident involving the Lease Facilities, Lessee will promptly provide Lessor 
with written notice thereof and make available to Lessor all information and documentation relating thereto. 

 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

ARTICLE XX 
Title and Filing 

 
Lessor or its assignee will retain title to the Lease Facilities and any and all additions, repairs, replacements, or 
modifications thereof during the term of this Agreement. Title to the Lease Facilities will pass to Lessee upon 
Lessee's payment of amounts due hereunder in accordance with the portion of the Lease Facilities and/or 
improvements which corresponds to the payment being made. Lessor agrees to execute such instruments and do such 
things as Lessee reasonable requests in order to effectuate the passage of title to the Lease Facilities to Lessee. At the 
end of the lease term and upon the payment of all payments due hereunder, Lessor agrees to transfer title to all Lease 
Facilities being leased if such transfer has not already occurred. 
 
Lessee authorizes Lessor to make the Lessor's security interest a matter of public record by filings of any documents 
Lessor deems necessary for that purpose, and agrees to be responsible for any costs associated therewith. Lessee 
agrees to sign or execute such documents at its expense to evidence its consent to filing.  Lessee agrees to timely file 
the appropriate IRS Form 8038-G or 8038-GC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement as of the _______ day of   _______, _______ 
                                                                                                       LESSOR: 
                                                                                                        “ Bank of Commerce “ 
ATTEST: 
                                                                                 BY:______________________________________ 
                                                                                        Adam Anderson, Executive Vice President 
_______________________________ 
___________________,  
 
                                                                                                       LESSEE: 
                                                                                                      ___________________________    
        City of Pryor Creek 
                      
           
 
 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA) 
                                          ) 
COUNTY OF MAYES) ss. 
 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this ________th day of 
_______________, ________ personally appeared   _____________________, Executive Vice President of ” Bank of 
Commerce “, to me known to be the identical person who signed the name of the maker thereof to the within and 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same as his free and voluntary act and deed of said 
Corporation, for the used and purposes therein set forth. 
 
Given under my hand and seal the day and year last above written. 
 
____________________________________________ 
Notary Public: 
My Commission Expires:________________________ 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA) 
                                         ) 
COUNTY OF MAYES) SS. 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this _______th day of 
________________,______,personally 
appeared__________________________,______________________,_______________________,and_____________
___________,__________________________,_____________________ to me known to be the identical person(s) 
representing the City of Pryor Creek, who executed the within and foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that 
they executed the same as their free and voluntary act and deed for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 
 
Given under my hand and seal the day and year last above written. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Notary Public: 
My Commission Expires:_________________________ 
 
 



7 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

DESCRIPTION OF EQUIPMENT 
City of Pryor Creek 

DTD: _______________________________ 
 

2020 Chevrolet Tahoe 
2020 Chevrolet Tahoe 
2020 Ford F-150 Crew 5.5” Box 
2020 Ford F-150 Crew 5.5” Box 
2020 Ford F-150 Crew 5.5” Box 
2020 Ford F-150 Crew 5.5” Box 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

LEASE PAYMENTS / PAYMENT 
SCHEDULE 

City of Pryor Creek 
DTD: _________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Date Payment Interest Principal Balance 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     

Total     

 
 
 
 



9 
 

SECTION 265(b)(3)(B) ELECTION UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED, 

AND RELATED TAX COVENANTS OF THE LESSEE 
 

The undersigned, City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, Oklahoma is the Lessee (herein "Lessee and 
obligor") under a certain Lease/Purchase Agreement (herein "Lease") dated as of ______________ made and 
entered into with Bank of Commerce, Pryor, Oklahoma, as Lessor (herein "Lessor"). This Lease represents that the 
Lessee is acquiring and desires to finance the Equipment by entering into an Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement 
with Lessor (herein "Lease Facilities"). 

 
WHEREAS, the Lessee has on or about ______________ authorized the financing of the 

lease/purchase of such Equipment and the financing thereof, and, now, desires to designate all Lease 
Payment Obligations authorized by the official actions of the Lessee relating to the Lease for purposes of 
Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Code as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations", and further desires to 
certify that not more than $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount of obligations, the interest on which is 
excludable (under Section 103(a) of the Code) from gross income for Federal income taxes (excluding, however, 
private activity bonds, as defined in Section 141 of the Code, other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined 
in Section 145 of the Code), including the Lease Payment Obligations, have been or shall be issued by the Lessee, 
including all subordinate entities of the Lessee, during the calendar year ______. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Lessee hereby delegates the Lease Payment Obligations related to the Lease 

for the purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Code "Qualified tax-exempt Obligations" and 
covenants that not more than $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the obligations, the interest on which is 
excludable (under Section 103(a) of the Code) from gross income for federal income taxes (excluding, however, 
private activity bonds, as defined in Section 141 of the Code, other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined 
in Section 145 of the Code), including the Lease Payment Obligations, have been or shall be issued by the 
Lessee, including all subordinate entities of the Lessee, during the calendar year ____________. 

 
This instrument to be binding on the undersigned and may be relied upon by Special Tax Counsel in 

rendering its Opinion related to this financing and the actions herein expressed shall be effective as of the ____ 

day of _________, _______, immediately prior to the issuance and delivery of the Payment Obligations. 
 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, OKLAHOMA  
 

By:            
Name:       
Title:   
Date:       

 
 



10 
 

EXHIBIT C 
FORM OF ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

 
I, the undersigned, being duly sworn hereby certify and state that I am the duly qualified 

and acting Officer of City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, Oklahoma (the "Lessee"), and, with 
respect to the Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of __________________ (the "Lease"), by 
and between Bank of Commerce, Pryor, Oklahoma, (the "Lessor") and Lessee, I further certify, 
as follows: 

 
1. The Lease Facilities described in the Lease (the "Lease Facilities") has been 

delivered and installed in accordance with the Specification (as the term is defined in the Lease) 
and has been irrevocably accepted by Lessee. 

 
2. The lease payments provided for in the Lease (the "Lease Payments") shall 

commence and be due and payable on _________ and on the _____ day of each Lease 
Payment Period thereafter in accordance with the Lease. 

 
3. Lessee has appropriated and/or taken all other lawful actions necessary to provide 

monies sufficient to pay all Lease Payments required to be paid under the Lease during the fiscal 
year of Lessee for which monies have been appropriated and such monies will be applied for 
payment of all Lease Payments due and payable during such current fiscal year. 

 
4. Lessee is exempt from all personal property taxes, and is exempt from sales 

and/or use taxes with respect to the Lease Facilities and the Lease Payments. 
 

5. During the Lease term (as defined in the Lease) the Lease Equipment will be 
used by Lessee only to perform essential government functions.  

 
Dated:  _______________ 

 
LESSEE: City of Pryor Creek
(CITY SEAL)  

By:         
Name:    
Title:   __________________________________ 

 

(To be executed and delivered at the time of delivery of the Lease Facilities.)



11 
 

 








	01 - Pryor Creek OK Proposal - CivicCMS
	02 - Pryor Creek OK Proposal - CP Connect
	03 - BD_Proposal_CoP_11-27
	04 - 191231 ANNEXATION & ZONING ORDINANCE MAIP PROJECT
	05 - 200116 resolution appointing edta trustees
	06 - CCM20200107
	06 - NEOKLA ARTIST SHOW FINAL EXPENSE REPORT
	07 - SOFTBALL APPLICATION
	08 - SOFTBALL GARAGE DOOR QUOTE
	09 - POLICE VEHICLES
	10 - vehicle quotes
	11 - vehicle spreadsheet
	12 - Amortization Schedules
	12 - Revised Amount - City of Pryor Bid Letter
	13 - BOC & City of Pryor Creek Lease Draft1
	14 - point blank vests
	15 - laserfiche

	Enter your Organization Name Here: Name:Lake Area Softball Association
	Street address:_6BhSzcqVZI7-Gr717gM5Zg: PO BOX 686 
	Street address line 2:_5KGcIEtrTKuhxrrgqo9U5A: 
	City:_JNlNnroh7Idd7yk12kkkvw: Pryor
	State:_BG4GwAf*zCd*d*YxULrnMg: [OK]
	Zip code:_ljbpdrHJh9M9OAPoxFva-w: 74362
	First name:_Jk5n*CvLG6wQXOUwgMHy1A: Heather
	Last name:_WIndikWsX3afI92VFkf1DQ: Baucom
	Phone number:_k4z1McKC6oeye*hwGEABPQ: 9183732941
	E-mail:_h4vPmbmG5ois9PZ9RnSjEA: lakeareasoftball@gmail.com
	Is your organization a non-pro_rWw*DYd2uR5SMzHtSeIG-g: Off
	Requested amount:_H0Jt7dJZ1JTHonWaeAQL0g: 1050.00
	Applicant_s Match amount:_M*KVLnIRs0GwASeO94GuhQ: 1430.40
	Total Project Budget:_KXlz06odJKR9PJq5XQl4xg: 2480.40
	Description of event or projec_eJMrjTiWjalzAC-Xsw5Ysg: The Lake Area Softball association is home to over 130 youth girls ranging in age from 4-18. We have three softball fields that are city owned but ran and maintained by our not for profit organization LASA. Our fields are over 30 years old and have never received the proper updating and maintenance that they deserve. We have a new board in place and highly engaged and motivated members that are ready to give this place the face lift it so desperately needs. One of the main things that we need is a new garage door for our garage that we keep our mower in. A few years ago someone tried to break into the garage and bent the garage door and damaged it to where it does not open and shut properly. Our other main focus is repairing some of the rotting wood on the bleachers and on the concession stand and giving it a fresh new coat of paint. 
	Where and when will the event _wg*rBPOQ*5hhcfPsKQIYCA: January 2020-June 2020
	Resources available for projec_CsAG1E-u4rDK06c0-jUf2Q: 
	Pro-Forma  Project Title:_ByLWIpApVgtGeC2kFJUSXQ: Bring The Pryor Softball Fields Back To Life
	Total Requested from Hotel / M_ghyLWSEpTKz-r4bEfqr*nw: 1050.00
	Total Project Revenues:_l4zcfZKr1FeI2WQrBPO1qQ: 
	Advertising_b4pMZyYAhtcmpxrnbEBdkg: 
	Promotional Printing_EEZzYupycpuKzyuk6trR1w: 
	Miscellaneous expenses:_gEDFnbDbGr576Hp0hU3Yow: $550 new garage door installed$350 Wood for bleachers and concession stand$150 Paint and painting supplies
	Total Expenses:_S2EQvrXyIYmn9GPnHopkgg: 1050.00
	fc-int01-generateAppearances: 


